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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Good morning,

          3  everyone, and welcome to this hearing of the Public

          4  Safety Committee. I'd like to introduce us to who is

          5  with us this morning. We have Vincent Gentile, Dan

          6  Garodnick, Melinda Katz, and we're joined by Speaker

          7  Quinn, who is the force behind this legislation and

          8  this hearing.

          9                 Some of my staff members informed me

         10  they feel like finals are over but they're still

         11  working. It's very important, it's not my fault.

         12                 Oh, Jimmy Oddo. Sorry, Jim, I didn't

         13  see you way over there in the right.

         14                 Today we'll be discussing legislation

         15  sponsored by the Speaker, which seeks to regulate

         16  the licensing of security personnel who work at

         17  nightclubs, dance clubs, cabarets.

         18                 We all impose the Speaker for

         19  proposing the Speaker and for having the hearing so

         20  quickly on this matters.

         21                 Legislation was created in the wake

         22  of several recent tragic incidents involving bar

         23  bounces.

         24                 On February 25th, 2006, Imette St.

         25  Guillen, a 24-year-old graduate student was sexually
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          2  assaulted and strangled after a night out in

          3  Manhattan.

          4                 Daryl Littlejohn, a bouncer at the

          5  Falls Bar in SoHo has been indicted for murder in

          6  Imette's killing.

          7                 On June 9th, Stephen Sakai was

          8  indicted on murder, attempted murder and other

          9  charges stemming from the shooting on May 23rd

         10  during which Gustavo Cuadros was killed and Julian

         11  Andres Cuadros, Ian Davis and Yeison Correa, were

         12  wounded outside of Opus 22, a Chelsea nightclub

         13  where Sakai was employed as a licensed bouncer but

         14  was not licensed to carry a firearm.

         15                 On June 11th, in my district,

         16  Francisco Sollizan, an unlicensed bouncer at Club

         17  Soma was charged with misdemeanor assault in

         18  connection with the death of 19-year-old who was

         19  killed outside the nightclub.  I have had the

         20  opportunity to meet with the St. Guillen family,

         21  along with Speaker Quinn, and Council Member Gerson

         22  was there and Council Member Recchia, and I've also

         23  met with the family of Mr. Fasarakis who was killed

         24  in Astoria. Obviously, they share a common bond of

         25  tremendous sorrow, but also they have a desire to do

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  something, to protect others from the fate that

          3  their family members tragically suffered. That's why

          4  we're here today.

          5                 This bill will modify the City laws

          6  to give the Department of Buildings, Department of

          7  Consumer Affairs and the New York City Police

          8  Department, a greater role in ensuring that security

          9  personnel meet the requirements of applicable laws.

         10  Once again, though, many of these laws do exist,

         11  they have just not been enforced by the State so the

         12  City is once again forced to step up to protect our

         13  own residents because the State has failed to do

         14  that.

         15                 When go to establishments covered by

         16  this legislation, they're relying on balances to

         17  protect them. We will ensure that all security

         18  personnel, including balances are appropriately

         19  trained, licensed and investigated, and that the

         20  City doesn't rely any longer solely on the State.

         21  The State has repeatedly failed to meet its

         22  obligations.

         23                 You know, the combination of alcohol

         24  and unlicensed bounces can be a deadly mix and today

         25  we take the first steps towards ensuring a safe
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          2  environment for New York City patrons.

          3                 Let me take the opportunity now to

          4  introduce the Speaker of the City Council, who

          5  deserves credit, not just for the great budget that

          6  she just co-created and signed on the dotted line

          7  basically yesterday. But for legislation, such as

          8  this, which was put in quickly to solve a need and

          9  basically this is, this type of legislation is very

         10  innovative, very unique, it's not simple. We have to

         11  come up with a way to do something that wasn't being

         12  done. And the Speaker deserves a lot of credit, as

         13  well as the staff of the City Council, which you see

         14  some up here for coming up with these laws, and let

         15  me turn it over now to the speaker for an opening

         16  statement.

         17                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you. And first,

         18  I just want to apologize because after I give my

         19  opening statement, unfortunately I'm going to have

         20  to leave to go speak at a high school graduation,

         21  which I want to thank the Chair very much for

         22  holding this hearing, as his reference to finals

         23  being over made clear this is a very busy time in

         24  the Council but the Chair and I felt it was very

         25  important to have a hearing on these items as
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          2  quickly as possible, and it's really a credit to his

          3  commitment to public safety issues and to New

          4  Yorkers that Chairperson didn't bat an eye when we

          5  said, you know, we really need to move this quickly,

          6  he said absolutely, let's find the date and I want

          7  to thank you very much for that.

          8                 I also want to thank the Mayor's

          9  Office for working closely with us and I know that

         10  through this hearing, and discussions and

         11  collaboration after the hearing we'll be able to

         12  come up with a set of legislation and laws that will

         13  absolutely be able to protect New Yorkers when

         14  they're out and having fun at establishments

         15  throughout our City.

         16                 You know, Peter listed some very

         17  tragic events that happened recently throughout our

         18  City and different boroughs, one of which happened

         19  in my district in 22nd Street in Chelsea, and the

         20  point of the bills we're hearing today is to try to

         21  make sure that New Yorkers go out to have fun, when

         22  they go out and participate in the New York

         23  nightlife, that they are safe. But also the point of

         24  this legislation is to recognize that overall the

         25  nightlife industry is an important part of economic
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          2  development in this City and it has a major role in

          3  that. But like in any industry, there are some bad

          4  apples, and we need to have the tightest laws on the

          5  books possible to weed out those bad apples, because

          6  when those bad apples are allowed to continue

          7  unregulated and unchecked, it puts people's lives in

          8  danger, we have seen that tragically.

          9                 It will cast a pale on the entire

         10  industry, and makes it appear that all people who

         11  run clubs are like that, and that is simply not the

         12  case. So, I believe these bills will first and

         13  foremost protect New Yorkers, but also will create a

         14  clear, a City legislative infrastructure that will

         15  support those who are behaving well, are good

         16  citizens, and get rid of those bad citizens out

         17  there in the industry.

         18                 You know, and as Chairperson Vallone

         19  said, we are left to think very, very creatively and

         20  outside of the box as it relates to City

         21  legislation, because unfortunately, once again this

         22  is an area where much of the power to protect

         23  ourselves and our citizens doesn't lie in the hands

         24  of the Mayor or the City Council, it lies in the

         25  hands of the State Legislature, so we are going to
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          2  do everything we can even with that obstacle in

          3  front of us to make sure we protect New Yorkers.

          4                 Chairperson Vallone mentioned that we

          5  recently had the honor really of meeting with Imette

          6  St. Guillen's family, and in that meeting, her

          7  mother, who could have, and we would all understand,

          8  had the position that we should close every

          9  nightclub and bar down in the City of New York, but

         10  she was really a remarkable woman, this remarkable

         11  woman, and that wasn't her position. Her position

         12  was nightlife was good and that New Yorkers and

         13  young New Yorkers particularly deserved a place to

         14  go and have fun. She said something that really

         15  stuck with me. She said when you go to a place where

         16  there is a bouncer, that that bouncer being there

         17  sends a message of safety. It sends a message that

         18  patrons believe there is someone there watching out

         19  for them. We need to make sure that that actually is

         20  the truth, that when a New Yorker walks into an

         21  establishment and they see a bouncer, that that

         22  bouncer is actually there to protect them, not to

         23  look away, and never again to actually be a

         24  perpetrator who hurts and kills them.

         25                 The family asked if I would read the
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          2  following statement on their behalf because they

          3  couldn't be with us today.

          4                 "We urge the passing of this very

          5  important legislation so that the tragedy that

          6  befell Imette never happens to another innocent

          7  person. Assessing severe penalties on establishments

          8  that shirk their responsibility and hire known

          9  criminals as security guards or bouncers is the only

         10  way to ensure compliance with the law.

         11                 Placing the responsibility on the

         12  establishment's owners to conduct background checks

         13  and striking them in their wallets if they do not,

         14  is the best way to ensure the safety of innocent

         15  people.

         16                 Although we are forever saddened by

         17  the loss of our Imette, we can be certain that in

         18  her pursuit of justice, she would have wanted this

         19  bill to pass.

         20                 Had such a bill been in place and

         21  enforced, this tragedy would have been prevented.

         22                 Let us now allow something so tragic

         23  to ever happen again to another family."

         24                 So, I again want to thank the Chair

         25  for all his work and the Mayor's Office for all
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          2  their work, and I look forward to the day when we

          3  can tell the St. Guillen family that we have lived

          4  up to their request in the wishes I just read. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPEAKER: Thank you, Madam

          7  Speaker. And let me reiterate what was just said.

          8  The Administration has just been supportive of this

          9  and very helpful, and when the Council, the Speaker,

         10  the Administration, all are onboard with something

         11  this important.

         12                 Use our joint capabilities together,

         13  good things happen, whether they be $53 billion

         14  budgets or new tough legislation. And we thank you

         15  for your support and we'll be hearing from the

         16  nightclub association later on. I believe they're

         17  also in support generally of these events and bills.

         18  And we've been joined also by Council Member Yassky,

         19  who has been in the forefront of the nightclub

         20  safety issue, with ideas such as Paid Detail, which

         21  I'm sure we'll also be discussing at some point

         22  today.

         23                 So, thank you all for joining us,

         24  Council members.

         25                 We will be hearing first from a panel
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          2  which will consist of John Feinblatt, our Criminal

          3  Justice Coordinator, who was here yesterday also,

          4  speaking about our new gun legislation. And he is

          5  joined by Assistant Commissioner Robert Messner and

          6  Deputy Chief Brian Conroy, as well as Susan Petito.

          7  And we thank you all for coming down, Commissioner.

          8                 You may begin.

          9                 MR. FEINBLATT: Thank you very much.

         10  We seem to be spending our mornings together

         11  recently, but I am delighted to be here today. My

         12  name is John Feinblatt, and I am the City's Criminal

         13  Justice Coordinator, and as you said, I am joined

         14  this morning by Deputy Chief Brian Conroy,

         15  Commanding Officer of the New York City Police

         16  Department's Vice Enforcement Division.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to be

         18  heard on this important bill that will enhance

         19  public safety.

         20                 We are here because we have a

         21  responsibility to do everything possible to ensure

         22  the safety of the millions of New Yorkers and

         23  tourists who enjoy our nightclubs and bars.

         24                 The three most recent cases of

         25  bouncers being involved in the deaths of patrons or
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          2  innocent bystanders put into stark relief the need

          3  for keeping careful track of the people in positions

          4  of authority with these establishments.

          5                 Currently State law regulates the

          6  licensing of security guards. First and foremost is

          7  important to make sure that those regulations, which

          8  require background checks, training and registration

          9  with the State are followed here in New York City.

         10                 The bill we are considering today

         11  does just that. It requires establishment owners to

         12  have paperwork proving their security guard during

         13  compliance with the State law on file, on site, and

         14  ready for immediate inspection.

         15                 In addition to holding owners

         16  accountable for complying with the law, having those

         17  documents on site will keep the police from having

         18  to waste precious time, trying to identify a

         19  security guard, who may have been involved in or

         20  have knowledge of an incident.

         21                 In addition to making compliance with

         22  State law more transparent, this bill gives us two

         23  key enforcement tools. First, it requires DCA to

         24  suspend or revoke a cabaret's license, if a cabaret

         25  fails to comply with the new record keeping
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          2  requirements; and second, the bill establishes a

          3  violation of the State Security Guard Law as a new

          4  basis for nuisance abatement.

          5                 As you know, nuisance abatement

          6  actions have proven to be an extraordinarily

          7  effective tool in areas as diverse as trademark

          8  counterfeiting and houses of prostitution.

          9                 The addition of these new tools will

         10  help us to act more swiftly, more aggressively and

         11  more effectively.

         12                 I applaud the City Council for

         13  working to ensure greater accountability and

         14  transparency.

         15                 It will keep people safe as they

         16  enjoy New York City's vibrant nightlife.

         17                 There are additional measures in the

         18  bill, and while we applaud their spirit, they raise

         19  some questions about their implementation. The bill

         20  seeks to extend background check requirements to a

         21  new category beyond the State definition of security

         22  guard.

         23                 This could include greeters who could

         24  be in charge of guarding an entrance or occasionally

         25  breaking up a fight.
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          2                 Checking these individual's

          3  background is a laudable goal, however, there are

          4  several questions we should ask as we consider the

          5  bill.

          6                 First, State law requires background

          7  checks for specified groups but not for others,

          8  therefore, it is possible that we are preempted from

          9  expanding this requirement to a new category.

         10                 Second, we should be careful to avoid

         11  being overly broad when we define who is considered

         12  to be a security employee.

         13                 For instance, does this section

         14  include bartenders or hosts, both of whom could be

         15  called upon to protect the public dance hall or

         16  cabaret from disorderly conduct by patrons.

         17                 Third, we should be clear what entity

         18  is responsible for conducting required background

         19  checks. If it is the establishment owners, we must

         20  clarify whether they have the necessary legal

         21  authority.

         22                 Our second area of concern is whether

         23  we're casting our net too wide. Simply put should

         24  all places of assembly be subject to the bill's

         25  requirements. As you know, there are well over
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          2  10,000 permits issued for places of assembly in New

          3  York City, ranging from churches and synagogues to

          4  cafeterias and movie theaters.

          5                 If they are all included, this bill

          6  runs the risk of legislating far beyond the stated

          7  area of concern.

          8                 In addition, we question whether the

          9  Department of Buildings is the right agency to

         10  perform what is arguably the law enforcement role.

         11                 But in conclusion, there is

         12  absolutely no doubt how much the nightlife industry

         13  contributes to our economy, and there is also no

         14  doubt we need New York City's nightlife to be both

         15  vibrant and safe.

         16                 I applaud the Council for crafting a

         17  bill that will help accomplish that goal, and I am

         18  certain that with more discussion we could make this

         19  bill even more effective.

         20                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         21  to be heard, and I would be pleased to answer any

         22  questions, after the testimony by Deputy Chief Brian

         23  Conway.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF CONWAY: Good morning,

         25  members of the Council. I'm Deputy Chief Brian
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          2  Conway, Commanding Officer of the New York City

          3  Police Department's Vice Enforcement Division.

          4                 I am joined today by Assistant

          5  Commissioner Rob Messner, who has a Legal Bureau

          6  Civil Enforcement Unit. On behalf of Police

          7  Commissioner Raymond Kelly, we are pleased to be

          8  here to discuss Intro. 366, enhancing the

          9  regulations of security guards in New York City.

         10                 The mission of the Vice Enforcement

         11  Division is to improve the quality of life in New

         12  York City, through the suppression of the listed

         13  vice conditions.

         14                 We focus on several areas which

         15  negatively affect on our communities; for example,

         16  after hours and illegal social clubs, unlawful

         17  gambling, houses of prostitution, sexual

         18  exploitation of children, human trafficking, illegal

         19  fireworks and loan sharking.

         20                 Of particular interest in our

         21  discussion today is our focus on violations of the

         22  Alcoholic Beverage Control law or ABC laws.

         23                 Poorly run bars and clubs can ruin

         24  the quality of life of an entire community. Precinct

         25  commanders will tell you that violent crime and
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          2  quality of life complaints are often the result of

          3  bad behavior fueled by alcohol and in some precincts

          4  a particular bar or club can generate most of their

          5  3-1-1 or 9-1-1 calls, and absorb most of their

          6  police resources, especially on weekends.

          7                 Therefore, a significant portion of

          8  the activity of Vice Enforcement Division is devoted

          9  to arresting and summonsing individuals who commit

         10  crimes that are related to licensed premises, such

         11  as under age liquor sales, drug sales within

         12  licensed premises, unlicensed security guards and

         13  disorderly premises.

         14                 Beyond criminal enforcement, however,

         15  the bill before you takes a creative approach to the

         16  problems presented by irresponsible bar and club

         17  owners who hire unlicensed and unqualified security

         18  personnel. The bill uses civil law to enhance public

         19  safety and put an end to criminal behavior.

         20                 This concept is actually the

         21  cornerstone of the Police Department's Civil

         22  Enforcement Unit, which uses the City's nuisance

         23  abatement law, among other civil statutes to solve

         24  longstanding community problems.

         25                 We would like to express our strong
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          2  support for the concept behind the bill, and look

          3  forward to being able use the nuisance abatement law

          4  to shut down premises whose security personnel who

          5  are unlicensed.

          6                 We have a few suggestions, however,

          7  which we believe might be helpful in strengthening

          8  the law even further.

          9                 The licensing of security guards is

         10  governed by State law, General Business Law Article

         11  7-A, the Security Guard Act.

         12                 This law requires applicants who have

         13  no convictions for most penal law felonies, or for

         14  misdemeanors which in the judgment of the Secretary

         15  of State, bear relationship to the duties of a

         16  security guard.

         17                 The only training requirement,

         18  however, for a security guard is an eight-hour

         19  pre-assignment course, followed by an on-the-job

         20  training course of a minimum of 16 hours.

         21                 We suggest that these training

         22  requirements do not adequately prepare a security

         23  guard for the challenges presented at a boisterous

         24  crowded bar or club.

         25                 Security guards should have the
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          2  verbal skills needed to diffuse confrontations, and

          3  must also be able to obtain the training that allow

          4  them to react them appropriately to and diffuse a

          5  potentially violent incident.

          6                 Further, they must have an

          7  understanding of the laws and arrest and

          8  justification for the use of physical force.

          9                 It is highly unlikely that an

         10  eight-hour course can provide the tools needed for

         11  an admittedly challenging role.

         12                 We would therefore like to work with

         13  you to explore the possibility of requiring enhanced

         14  level of training for security guards employed by

         15  licensed premises in New York City.

         16                 Another perhaps unexpectedly

         17  important aspect of regulating security personnel at

         18  licensed premises is record keeping.

         19                 It is essential for a premise owner

         20  to have available at the scene a list of the

         21  security personnel working at any given time with

         22  their registration numbers available to enforcement

         23  officers.

         24                 This simply requirement would help to

         25  address an all too common occurrence when police
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          2  respond to a violent incident, the owner of the bar

          3  has no documentation for who is working security,

          4  and the bouncer who may have been involved has

          5  disappeared from the scene.

          6                 A third issue raised by the bill,

          7  which we believe requires further discussion is the

          8  reference to security guards being employed in

          9  violation of the ABC law, as well as the use of two

         10  different terms, security guard, and security

         11  employee.

         12                 General Business Law Section 89-F

         13  defines a security guard as someone who is hired to

         14  principally perform functions, such as protection of

         15  individuals, and/or property, deterrence and

         16  detection of unlawful activity, or street patrol.

         17                 There are perhaps instances this bill

         18  is trying to address where owners characterize their

         19  security personnel as greeters or hosts and

         20  therefore seek to avoid the licensing requirement.

         21                 The security guards themselves often

         22  make this claim when defending themselves against

         23  criminal charges for unlicensed security guard

         24  activity.

         25                 We would like to work with you to
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          2  clarify the scope of the bill so the consistent

          3  terminology is used, which will not allow such

          4  evasion.

          5                 I would also like to explore what is

          6  intended by employment in violation of ABC law.

          7  Since the ABC law itself does not require security

          8  personnel to be on the premises, whether licensed or

          9  otherwise.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  discuss Intro. 366 today, and we look forward to

         12  working with you to ensure that a new and effective

         13  tool is added to our enforcement efforts on behalf

         14  of the people of New York City, and we are pleased

         15  to answer any questions you may have.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: No more

         18  testimony? Thank you.

         19                 Let me just respond to something you

         20  just said, Chief Conroy. I agree completely

         21  regarding the training our security guards receive

         22  right now.

         23                 In fact we had an entire hearing on

         24  this. In 2004 I actually sponsored a resolution,

         25  which the entire Council adopted, which called upon
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          2  the State Legislature to allow us to have more

          3  stringent requirements for security guards here in

          4  New York City.

          5                 Back then and right now we were

          6  worried about their preparedness to guard us against

          7  terrorism. We have private security guards guarding

          8  some of our most vulnerable sites right now with an

          9  eight-hour training course. They testified here that

         10  they're responsible for checking a car when it comes

         11  into the garage to find out if there's a bomb. I

         12  believe one of the security guards said, I wouldn't

         13  know a muffler from a bomb if I saw it, because

         14  they're not trained. They're not trained at all in

         15  these things. And now we see where the training is

         16  also necessary in areas like you just discussed. So,

         17  you're absolutely right, we do need to work together

         18  to make sure our security guards have more training,

         19  not just in anti-terror but in crowd control and in

         20  the areas that you mentioned.

         21                 We've also been joined, I believe, by

         22  Council Member Gerson, who has been the driving

         23  force behind this, some of this legislation and this

         24  hearing. Very involved, in fact, as I mentioned

         25  before you were here, was at the meeting with the
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          2  St. Guillen family. Council Member Addabbo is also

          3  here some place.

          4                 Let me shoot to questions first to

          5  Council Member Yassky.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          7  Chair Vallone. I will, I'm sure you're going to go

          8  through kind of the specifics of this bill here. So,

          9  I'll just focus on the idea that you raised, Chair

         10  Vallone.

         11                 You know, as you know, there is, the

         12  Police Department operates a Paid Detail Program

         13  where businesses can employ off-duty police

         14  officers, or really hire the Department to provide

         15  off-duty police officers in uniform to provide

         16  security in Yankee Stadium, Bloomingdales, I know

         17  there is a moving theater in my district that does

         18  this, and, you know, my belief is there is no better

         19  way to keep order and folks that are leaving a bar

         20  or nightclub, can be kind of unruly sometimes. No

         21  better way to keep them orderly than have an officer

         22  in blue outside.

         23                 And when some of the nightlife

         24  establishments have sought to take advantage of the

         25  Paid Detail Program, I guess the Department's policy
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          2  has been that not to permit that.

          3                 What do you think of allowing

          4  nightlife establishments to take advantage of the

          5  Paid Detail Program, so as to keep neighborhoods

          6  safer?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

          8  Council member, I'm Susan Petito, Intergovernmental

          9  Affairs from the Police Department. We certainly

         10  have had a long discussion about the issue of Paid

         11  Detail. The Police Department's position is that as

         12  structured currently, police officers would not be

         13  able to be used as Paid Detail, because that would

         14  violate the provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage

         15  Control Law, because they would be directly or

         16  indirectly interested in the sale of alcohol. So, it

         17  would be a misdemeanor for a police officer to be

         18  hired under Paid Detail the way it currently exists.

         19                 What we have discussed in the past,

         20  and about two years ago the Police Department put

         21  forth a suggestion regarding the way we could

         22  structure a Paid Detail program specifically for

         23  bars, licensed premises, but the Council did not

         24  follow-up on that proposal. The feedback that we

         25  received was that it would not be possible to do it
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          2  that way.

          3                 So, we had certainly a proposal in

          4  mind that would insulate police officers from --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Fair enough. I

          6  mean, on the Alcoholic Beverage Control Law, I will

          7  send you again. I'm sure you saw the letter from the

          8  former head of ABC who said that in his opinion,

          9  that was not at all violation of the Alcoholic

         10  Beverage Control Law, but just what about having a

         11  trade group? There is a New York Nightlife

         12  Association, what about having them employ the Paid

         13  Detail program to make sure that nightlife

         14  establishments can provide adequate security? Would

         15  that be acceptable?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Not

         17  unless there were certain other conditions present.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Like what?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Like

         20  what?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: They could

         22  certainly be a representative of a group of licensed

         23  premises. The proposal that we put forth is that a

         24  minimum of three licensed premises would be able to

         25  employ a detail with a minimum of two sergeants and
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          2  ten police officers, for a minimum of six hours.

          3                 And that, we believed -- and there

          4  were other conditions, of course, but that's in a

          5  nutshell what the minimums were, and within, you

          6  know, a close geographic area. So that would be a

          7  team concept and that there would be close

          8  supervision, and it would be more than one premise.

          9  It would be a minimum of three. And there were a lot

         10  of other elements of the proposal, but those are the

         11  basics.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, Chair

         13  Vallone, I don't want to have the whole hearing

         14  devoted to that topic, so I'll -- so we can

         15  follow-up on this with the Department at another

         16  time.

         17                 I guess if your position is it

         18  violates the ABC Law, for a nightlife establishment

         19  to hire, you know, have one person on Paid Detail,

         20  it's not clear to me why it's okay for them to hire

         21  12 people under Paid Detail. So, that can't really

         22  be the objection.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         24  Actually, sir, it is, because it insulates the

         25  individual officer from a relationship with an
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          2  individual premise sufficient to the point where we

          3  think it does not violate the ABC law.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, like I

          5  said, then certainly the Nightlife Association could

          6  take advantage of Paid Detail, that's not an

          7  individual establishment. So, I'm not sure what the

          8  problem with that would be.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         10  Nightlife Association could certainly represent

         11  three or more nightlife establishments within a

         12  geographic area.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, I'm

         14  going to encourage them to pursue that with you.

         15  Then I'm sure that there are more than three

         16  establishments in the City that would want to take

         17  advantage of this. So, I'll encourage them to pursue

         18  that with you, and I hope you're able to see your

         19  way clear to making that happen. Because I do think

         20  that if we're really serious about helping

         21  neighborhoods avoid some of the hassle that comes

         22  with some of the nightlife establishments, the best

         23  way we can do it is to give the nightlife industry

         24  access to the same Paid Detail program that movie

         25  theaters and department stores have. I think that
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          2  would be the best way to do it.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          5  Council member.

          6                 Commissioner Feinblatt, I was just

          7  going through your testimony and the testimony of

          8  Commander Conroy; we, too, have wrestled with the

          9  definition of security guards, and I'm sure we will

         10  continue to do that, and we don't -- you know, we

         11  can't figure out a way to not catch greeters under

         12  this -- any definition we came up with, we tried to

         13  eliminate greeters or would lead to a bigger

         14  loophole. However, you do make a good point, you

         15  don't want anyone involved in protecting the

         16  location. That also would include, as you said,

         17  bouncers and -- I'm sorry, not bouncers, bartenders,

         18  hosts, things like that, who can conceivably break

         19  up a fight or something along those lines.

         20                 So, we look forward to continuing to

         21  work with you to come up with a definition of that

         22  that we can all live with, that can do the job that

         23  it's supposed to.

         24                 What is the City's role, let me go to

         25  you, Commanding Officer Conroy, the City's role
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          2  presently, prior to these bills? What does the Vice

          3  Squad do right now when it comes to unlicensed

          4  bouncers?

          5                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: We would

          6  typically issue a summons. But we would also check

          7  that person to see if they had any kind of warrants

          8  on them or anything like that. But it would only be

          9  a Criminal Court summons at this point, and there

         10  would be no action, further action to be able to

         11  take against the premise.

         12                 We could also issue an SLA report

         13  which would go to the State Liquor Authority, and

         14  then it would be up to them to take any kind of

         15  action at that point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And the summons

         17  is for what?

         18                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: For having

         19  an unlicensed -- performing security guard without a

         20  license.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So the summons

         22  actually goes to the security guard and not the

         23  location?

         24                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: What we

         25  usually do at this point is, if the owner of the
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          2  club went out and got a security company that

          3  subsequently hired an unlicensed guard, typically at

          4  that point we would only serve as the guard.

          5                 If the club owner actually hired the

          6  guard, then we would summons both persons. And,

          7  again, it's kind of an unofficial thing we're doing,

          8  but also an SLA report would be going, be forwarded

          9  to the State Liquor Authority.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now, how has

         11  this been done in the past? Is it a

         12  complaint-driven? Do you go out and do these as a

         13  matter of course? How many do you do? What has

         14  happened prior to today?

         15                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: We

         16  typically routinely do a lot of inspections on clubs

         17  and bars. It's driven mostly by problematic

         18  incidents that have happened in the place. Due to

         19  the number of licensed premises throughout the City,

         20  we usually target our enforcement in places that had

         21  prior incidents of violence or complaints from the

         22  community.

         23                 So, we typically enter a place,

         24  because it's not under a nuisance abatement

         25  violation, we don't focus entirely on it because we
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          2  can't get the club closed because of it. So, we do

          3  focus more on under-age drinking, which is currently

          4  our best tool, prostitution, drug sales, gambling,

          5  those are the primary areas of focus.

          6                 We have taken a look at the security

          7  guards, and recently have stepped up the

          8  enforcement, and we find glaring problems there. Up

          9  to 50 percent or more of the guards are unlicensed,

         10  and we're finding 40 percent of those have criminal

         11  histories, and in some cases very serious criminal

         12  histories, including rape, robbery, gun possession,

         13  drug sales, and we're seeing these people now are

         14  kind of right in the club mix, with sometimes

         15  vulnerable patrons after they're certainly consuming

         16  alcohol during the evening.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How large is the

         18  Vice Enforcement Division?

         19                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: We

         20  currently have 150 investigators at this point, all

         21  together with supervisors we're about at 200.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And how are they

         23  distributed throughout the City?

         24                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: Each

         25  borough has a Vice Enforcement Squad.

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So that's 200

          3  divided up between the five boroughs?

          4                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: That's

          5  correct. Well, they are different -- Manhattan may

          6  be divided up by two boroughs. Brooklyn is also

          7  divided into two boroughs. Queens is one Borough

          8  squad, and we have Brooklyn South covers Staten

          9  Island also.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think what you

         11  said is important. Prior to this your focus was on

         12  shutting down these clubs, which were community

         13  nuisances. And to do that it didn't help you to find

         14  an unlicensed security guard, and now not only will

         15  you be able to close down the club, based on these

         16  violations, but you'll be able to go after that

         17  problem on its own.

         18                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Correct?

         20                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: Correct.

         21  And we do see it as -- as we look at it closely, we

         22  do see it as a major problem.

         23                 This weekend, the 24th, June 24th or

         24  25th, we went out and did enforcement specifically

         25  targeting unlicensed security or bouncers. Out of 42
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          2  locations we inspected, 22 had unlicensed security

          3  guards. Seventeen of those 42 had prior criminal

          4  histories, two had rape arrests, and one had an

          5  unlicensed gun on his possession.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And what was

          7  that time period?

          8                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: That was

          9  just on the weekend -- this past weekend, June 24th

         10  and June 25th. We just went out an targeted just

         11  specifically to look for the unlicensed security

         12  guards or bouncers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's

         14  mind-boggling statistics. That's why we moved so

         15  quickly on this hearing, to give you the tools you

         16  need to do even more than you're able to do now.

         17                 You said you report to the SLA, the

         18  Liquor Authority; what typically happens with these

         19  reports? I mean, do they respond in any way? Do they

         20  eventually suspend the liquor license? What have you

         21  found to be the result of your sending reports to

         22  the SLA?

         23                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: In my

         24  experience it's very rare that a license gets

         25  suspended. Extremely rare.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me turn now

          3  to Council Member Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman.

          6                 I actually have, it's a very basic

          7  question, which I know this is our first hearing on

          8  bouncers, but what is the legal requirement, if any,

          9  to ever have a bouncer?

         10                 And I notice that there is a

         11  distinction in our legislation, at least, which I do

         12  want to talk to the Chair at some point about,

         13  between bars cabarets and public dance halls.

         14                 So, I'm wondering if there is any

         15  legal obligation to have a bouncer in any of those

         16  establishments in the City?

         17                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: None at all?

         19                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: It's not

         20  an obligation to have one.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's

         22  interesting.

         23                 All right. And if I'm not mistaken,

         24  the Administration's issue is the security employee

         25  definition, the security guard, we're using the
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          2  State definition, right? So, the security employee

          3  definition, so is there specific changes that you

          4  think it should have in order to be acceptable to

          5  the Administration? Or is it just that you don't

          6  want to make the distinction between the two because

          7  it's already defined on the State level, and it

          8  might be a little bit difficult moving forward to

          9  distinguish?

         10                 MR. FEINBLATT: I think we just want

         11  to work with members of the Council to make it as

         12  precise as possible.

         13                 As the Chairman just pointed out,

         14  there is some risk that we might, by the current

         15  definition, extend it to bartenders, even a wait

         16  staff, because theoretically they might be involved

         17  in keeping the order in a place, although that

         18  clearly is not a major role. And, so, it's just

         19  working on the definition together. I don't see it

         20  as extraordinarily problematic, it's just in

         21  drafting.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And out of

         23  curiosity, when the permits are gotten for cabaret

         24  licenses or dance halls, I mean, there is no

         25  requirement for any bouncers; is there some
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          2  requirement -- there must be some safety

          3  requirements, if you're going to have a cabaret hall

          4  that allows 200, 300 people, is there something that

          5  we look at for safety requirements, and folks

          6  responsible for the aspects of that in the hall?

          7                 MR. FEINBLATT: Well, of course the

          8  requirements of the Building Code, the Fire Code and

          9  things like that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, precisely.

         11                 MR. FEINBLATT: Those are primarily

         12  what one looks for in these. And patterns of illegal

         13  activity, which the Police Department certainly

         14  looks at consistently.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, thank

         16  you.

         17                 I guess, Mr. Chairman, I just want to

         18  echo the words of the Speaker, which is that, you

         19  know, as someone who in my younger years might have

         20  gone out to a lot of these clubs, I will say,

         21  though, that there is a certain aspect of safety

         22  when you see a bouncer outside, and we do expect

         23  that if you go to them for help, that they will

         24  deliver it, that that's part of what they're there

         25  for, and so I applaud you and the Speaker and
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          2  everyone for drafting legislation.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          5                 Chief, I just want to run through

          6  those statistics again. Did you say 44 inspections

          7  last week and 22 of which had unlicensed bouncers,

          8  17 of those having criminal convictions?

          9                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: It was 42

         10  in locations we inspected, 22 had unlicensed

         11  security guards, some had multiple security guards,

         12  so, 41 unlicensed security guards in those 22

         13  premises, 17 of those 42 persons had prior arrest

         14  histories, and for most cases serious arrest

         15  history.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Including a rape

         17  conviction.

         18                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: Including

         19  rape. One had, again, had an unlicensed firearm on

         20  his possession, and one of those rape was also a

         21  registered sex offender.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Wow, it sounds

         23  worse than the wild west when it comes to what's out

         24  there right now protecting our residents.

         25                 When you go to a location and you try
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          2  to check on these security guards, are they required

          3  now to carry any proof that they have a license? How

          4  do you prove that they have one or don't have one?

          5                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: They would

          6  have an ID card indicating that they are a licensed

          7  security guard.

          8                 There's also a phone number that we

          9  can call to check to see if they have a registered

         10  security guard.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is it a

         12  requirement right now that they carry that ID card?

         13                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: I believe

         14  that is the requirement, but I'm not 100 percent

         15  positive on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Well, you

         17  can get back to me and we'll find that out.

         18                 Council Member Gerson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         20  much, Mr. Chair. Thank you for your leadership in

         21  ensuring this expedited hearing.

         22                 Good afternoon. Just a few follow-up

         23  questions. Just I want to make sure we're on the

         24  same page here, as I think we are. So, Mr.

         25  Feinblatt, when you raised the issue of, you know,
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          2  casting the net too wide, in terms of establishments

          3  that might be covered by this bill, don't we really

          4  know the types of establishments that we want to

          5  cover and it's just a question of crafting, you

          6  know, the wording?

          7                 You know, we don't want to limit it

          8  just to cabarets on the one hand. I believe we want

          9  to probably -- I mean, let me put it this way, are

         10  we not in agreement that we would want to cover all

         11  establishments that are generally described as

         12  nightlife establishments, bars, clubs, lounges,

         13  maybe with a possible exception of very small sized,

         14  you know, neighborhood-type bars? But isn't that

         15  what we're able to cover here, or what we should be

         16  able to cover here?

         17                 MR. FEINBLATT: Yes. I think that we

         18  spiritually are in agreement about what we want to

         19  cover. I think there are places in the current

         20  legislation which stray from that, particularly the

         21  area where we place requirements of all people, of

         22  all establishments that hold public assembly

         23  permits, for instance, because, of course, that can

         24  include the cafeteria in the 1,500 schools that we

         25  have and movie theaters and I think that that's
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          2  beyond the scope of what we're all trying to do

          3  here.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm thinking

          5  of Arnold Schwartzeneger in that moving Nursery Room

          6  Cop (sic) or something like --

          7                 MR. FEINBLATT: You saw it, not me.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I saw the

          9  advertisement.

         10                 Kindergarten Cop, I'm reminded.

         11                 But maybe in his case there should be

         12  a license, but that's for a different hearing. But

         13  we would want to cover what is commonly described as

         14  nightlife establishments, liquor license

         15  establishments that cater, that are part of the

         16  nightlife industries; is that correct?

         17                 MR. FEINBLATT: Yes, that is correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm always

         19  glad to be in spiritual accord with John Feinblatt.

         20                 Then, and I'm sure we can work out

         21  the definition that serves that purpose. And in

         22  terms of the category of employee, and I recognize

         23  there are issues of State law, but assuming we could

         24  work out the technical issues, would we not want to

         25  cover all employees who are responsible for guarding
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          2  the entrance to premises? Trying to parallel your

          3  language, but essentially I would take it we would

          4  want to cover security personnel, personnel

          5  designated as security personnel for the interior of

          6  the club, and we would also want to cover any

          7  personnel who were assigned, if you will, to the

          8  entrance ways of the doors of the clubs to safeguard

          9  the premises. And does that make sense in terms of

         10  the scope of the personnel we would want to cover?

         11                 MR. FEINBLATT: Yes. Again, I think

         12  that we are probably in agreement about what we want

         13  to cover.

         14                 I think as currently drafted,

         15  particularly the section that talks about all people

         16  who could be called upon to protect the public dance

         17  hall or cabaret from disorderly conduct by patrons

         18  may get us into a category of being just too

         19  overbroad. But, again, I think these are issues of

         20  drafting. I think we all know what we mean, we just

         21  have to put on our drafting hats and get it right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And we mean to

         23  include pretty much personnel who are assigned to

         24  work for the most part at the door, to include them?

         25                 MR. FEINBLATT: I think that what we
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          2  mean is that people who have substantial security

          3  responsibilities. That's what we're trying to

          4  define.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Wouldn't that

          6  include people who are assigned, not to the

          7  exclusion of other categories, but I'm asking in

          8  your mind would that include people who are assigned

          9  to work at the door?

         10                 MR. FEINBLATT: I think primarily,

         11  yes. And I think we just have to make sure that

         12  we're precise about the definition of the roles of

         13  those persons, because in certain establishments you

         14  might have different types of people working at the

         15  door performing different functions.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But we also

         17  want to be sure we don't leave open a loophole.

         18                 MR. FEINBLATT: There's no question

         19  about it. You don't want to do that either.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. So, I'm

         21  sure we could work that out, as well.

         22                 MR. FEINBLATT: I'm confident.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Then let me

         24  ask Chief Conroy, and like all of my colleagues, I'm

         25  amazed at the statistics you cited, I think they
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          2  make the case clearly for the imperative for this

          3  legislation. And I'm glad you brought up the issue

          4  of training, because that is something, and I am one

          5  of the prime sponsors of the legislation, that is

          6  something we had discussed. One of the objections

          7  that had been raised in discussion was that often

          8  personnel who work as bouncers or security personnel

          9  in these establishments are not long-term employees,

         10  or they're not in many cases, you know, this is

         11  their second job or they're here for a few months

         12  and then they move on, therefore, it would not be

         13  practical to impose training requirements on such

         14  personnel.

         15                 I'm not saying I agree with that. I

         16  tend not to, but that is a point that was raised to

         17  me and I'm curious to ask your response or reaction,

         18  or I would like to ask your response and reaction to

         19  that.

         20                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: I feel the

         21  training is essential, even though they may move

         22  around to different premises, that training would

         23  still cover them, if they did in one premise or they

         24  moved to another location, it's very difficult to

         25  control some of these crowds in these clubs. Some of
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          2  these clubs have over 2,000 people in them, and to

          3  put somebody in there with only eight hours of

          4  training is just not something practical or that's

          5  going to create a safe environment.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And I would

          7  add, you know, often these folks interact, not only

          8  with the patrons of the establishments, but with the

          9  general public who may be walking by on the sidewalk

         10  and may be hanging out on the sidewalk without

         11  wanting to enter in, and I've seen interactions both

         12  positive and negative, and with negative

         13  interactions sometimes being quite problematic,

         14  which could hopefully be avoided or minimized by

         15  training.

         16                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: And those

         17  security persons also work with various community

         18  groups, as some establishments actually try to

         19  appease some of the neighborhood complaints

         20  regarding a club. So, they're outside, they're

         21  trying to move people away from the club after

         22  they've left the club, these are people who may have

         23  been drinking for several hours, and now they're

         24  trying to move them along. It's a difficult

         25  situation, and the more training they can get is
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          2  going to make their job easier and make them more

          3  professional at doing it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, Mr. Chair,

          5  I would just urge that we work with the Department

          6  to come up with, certainly not excessive, but

          7  reasonable training requirements for the personnel

          8  we would want to cover by this legislation.

          9                 And finally, Ms. Petito, because you

         10  and I have worked together on many issues and I've

         11  enjoyed our collaboration so much, you know, I

         12  always look for another possible avenue of

         13  collaboration.

         14                 So, let me ask you this: On this

         15  issue of the Paid Detail, I agree with the policy

         16  you outlined that we need to insulate any Paid

         17  Detail from any liquor license establishment, and I

         18  think I agree with you that probably we would not

         19  accomplish that goal by engaging the association

         20  which represents the establishments which we need to

         21  insulate the officers, but could we get together and

         22  see if there are other ways of achieving that

         23  insulation. I think the Department suggestion was a

         24  good first suggestion. The concern was maybe a

         25  little overkill, a little nervousness in certain
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          2  areas, and maybe there are other avenues. I mean, I

          3  could imagine different ways of achieving that

          4  insulation. I could imagine, you know, a requirement

          5  for certain sized clubs, or clubs where you have

          6  concentrations, for example, that they are required

          7  to pay a fee into a blind trust or a division of

          8  City government, or of a department, and then which,

          9  in turn, assigns the officers from the Paid Detail

         10  Unit but those officers would remain under command

         11  and control of their precincts or of a specialized

         12  division of a department, and not under the command

         13  and control of the establishments.

         14                 This is not the hearing to belabor

         15  that point, but my question to you is could we get

         16  together to explore different avenues of achieving

         17  this policy goal of insulation?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         19  Certainly. We made a proposal and that was what we

         20  thought was the minimum that was needed. But we are

         21  certainly willing to discuss the issue with you

         22  further.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Then we'll

         24  follow-up.

         25                 And I just want to say, Mr. Chair,
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          2  you know, as having worked with you and the Speaker

          3  on this legislation, I just want to stress, we view

          4  this as both a pro safety and a pro nightlife

          5  legislation, piece of legislation. New York needs

          6  and deserves a vibrant cutting-edge exciting

          7  nightlife, and the way to assure that we have that

          8  is to assure that the patrons of that nightlife feel

          9  safe, feel that they can let down their guard

         10  precisely where they want to be able to, and that

         11  the general public also feels fully safe with these

         12  establishments, and that is the intent of this goal,

         13  to enhance safety first and foremost, and we know

         14  that as we enhance safety, we will also enhance

         15  nightlife. So, I look forward to working with all to

         16  getting this done, safety first, and we'll have a

         17  safe and fun City as well.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         20  Council Member.

         21                 Let me again, regarding those stats,

         22  you found out that over half of our establishments

         23  are still employing unlicensed bouncers, many with

         24  criminal, serious criminal convictions, that

         25  happened after St. Guillen, after the Sakai
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          2  killings; it's just mind-boggling. And the problem

          3  is, as you said, you will go in and find the

          4  bouncer, find the bar maybe, and they'll pay as a

          5  cost of doing business, because the SLA won't come

          6  in and shut them down.

          7                 After we pass this legislation, we'll

          8  be able to shut them down. And trust me, I know you

          9  guys, we will be shutting them down. And it will

         10  make a huge difference, because, obviously the

         11  vicious murders we've seen haven't made a

         12  difference, you know, and we just can't rely on

         13  people to do the right thing. It's not happening.

         14                 So, we will now go to Council Member

         15  Oddo.

         16                 And we've been joined by Council

         17  Member Gennaro. Well, kind of, semi-joined by

         18  Council Member Gennaro.

         19                 Okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman, I

         21  don't know if we should be that surprised by the

         22  statistics, because, you know, if you think about

         23  it, the only qualifications really that have been

         24  asked for in the past for those jobs, that you have

         25  a jacked-up body and a tight-fitting shirt. So, I'm
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          2  not surprised by it.

          3                 But I just want to bring to your

          4  attention, Mr. Chairman, and reiterate the point

          5  that Mr. Feinblatt made with respect to the

          6  Buildings Department maybe not being the right

          7  agency to perform this role.

          8                 I mean, if you look at these

          9  different provisions of the bill, I'm not sure if

         10  I'm comfortable with the DOB being the entity to

         11  reach out to the SLA as required by subdivision H.

         12  In subdivision G it empowers DOB as well as the

         13  Police Department and Consumer Affairs. I would

         14  prefer to see it specifically calling on the PD and

         15  Consumer Affairs. Not that they don't have enough

         16  already on their plate, but, frankly, the Department

         17  of Buildings is struggling to perform it's charter

         18  mandate duties and some of us aren't terribly happy

         19  with that performance so far, or confident that they

         20  could do that, to have them handle some of these

         21  other duties that they don't have a relationship

         22  with, meaning State agencies, I guess SLA. I think

         23  that we should have the PD and Consumer Affairs

         24  handling the bulk of this. I think they'll do a

         25  better job at it. And I would just ask if, would you
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          2  be willing to go beyond the written testimony in

          3  talking about that point about DOB? Are you

          4  specifically saying you have a different agency in

          5  mind?

          6                 MR. FEINBLATT: Well, I think I would

          7  make the point that I made in my testimony. I think

          8  that we're talking about what's arguably a law

          9  enforcement function here, and DCA and the Police

         10  Department have performed this kind of role in the

         11  past, have a relationship with the State Liquor

         12  Authority, and I think we're putting DOB into a new

         13  business here. And so it seems to me probably more

         14  appropriate to stick with the tried and the true on

         15  such an important issue.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman, I

         17  would just ask when we go back and we draft, we keep

         18  that in mind.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's a very good

         21  point.

         22                 I think it's envisioned that the

         23  application for an assembly permit, this sort of

         24  proof would have to be provided to the Department of

         25  Buildings.
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          2                 I'm not sure how -- I mean,

          3  obviously, Department of Consumer Affairs and the

          4  Police Department is given the authority under our

          5  laws to do what needs to be done. We're additionally

          6  giving that to the Department of Buildings. We'll

          7  work with you and everyone, because the Commissioner

          8  had the same concern, to see if there's another way

          9  to get that done. And that will be one of the many

         10  amendments we'll be considering today.

         11                 Okay, any more questions from Council

         12  members?

         13                 Okay, Council Member Gerson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: The issue you

         15  raised about which agency should perform the

         16  background check, I think the presumption, again, we

         17  could go back to the drafting, is that a perspective

         18  employee would go to a law enforcement agency or the

         19  Office of the Court and have his background, you

         20  know, certified, and then present that to the

         21  prospective employer, much as I know from experience

         22  when you apply for, you know, a position in one of

         23  the reserve branches in the services, you go and get

         24  fingerprinted and certified by your NYPD precinct

         25  and then you bring it to the service.
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          2                 Putting aside the language to make

          3  sure it conforms to that type of approach, is that

          4  generally acceptable? Do you have any ideas of how

          5  to improve it, or how to -- you know, is there a

          6  better way to do the background check?

          7                 MR. FEINBLATT: I think there are two

          8  issues. One is just that we have to be precise in

          9  the language, which is not as precise as it could

         10  be.

         11                 And the second issue is that we just

         12  have to look at what entities DCJS, which will

         13  provide us with a fingerprint background check,

         14  which agencies they are authorized to provide that

         15  for, and I think that we just have to make sure that

         16  we have a scheme that is consistent with current law

         17  and current practice.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. So, I'm

         19  sure we'll follow up with that. And point well

         20  taken.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         23                 Mr. Conroy, how does your agency

         24  interact with the SLA? I mean, they've complained in

         25  the past that they don't have the inspectors
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          2  necessary, which they should, but let's assume they

          3  don't, and that the NYPD should be doing

          4  enforcement. We're told that you do, and you notify

          5  them, it's hard for me to believe that they can say

          6  that they don't have the staff, but then when you

          7  supply them with the results of your work, it

          8  doesn't seem like you're getting cooperation.

          9                 Describe for me how you do interact

         10  with the SLA while you do your job?

         11                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: We rely on

         12  our ability to go out there and conduct our

         13  enforcement. Nuisance abatement has been a key

         14  component of our enforcement, being able to shut a

         15  place down for a period of time, even maybe a short

         16  period of time, has been an essential tool in us

         17  regulating and controlling the problematic clubs and

         18  bars. And the best part of it is that when they do

         19  reopen, there are stipulations that they have to

         20  follow, which makes it more difficult, it makes them

         21  incumbent to now provide better security or enhance

         22  their crowd control abilities.

         23                 Typically, every time we issue a

         24  violation to a club, we do prepare an SLA report,

         25  and we bring those SLA reports over to the SLA.
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          2  They're in the thousands, of reports that we

          3  actually do, not just the vice enforcement division,

          4  but also the local precincts are actively involved

          5  in preparing SLA violations.

          6                 Most precincts that have a club bar

          7  problem have their own cabaret squad that also does

          8  enforcement at the bars and clubs. The problem we

          9  see is that there is not much follow-up. As you

         10  mentioned, the typical response is we have a limited

         11  number of inspectors and that seems to be the

         12  problem.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But do they have

         14  to reinspect after you've issued a summons for an

         15  unlicensed bouncer?

         16                 Why wouldn't that be sufficient for

         17  them to take action to take away a liquor license?

         18                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: The

         19  typical response is that they are now eligible or

         20  have the right to have a hearing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, not only do

         22  they have problems with inspections the problem is

         23  doing their job in general. They can't do hearings,

         24  they can't do --

         25                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: We try to

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  work very closely with the State Liquor Authority,

          3  and they are an important part of our overall club

          4  enforcement-type plan, but, again, it's not

          5  something that we see that's been all that

          6  effective.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Actually, Mr.

          8  Chair, if I may? As usual, you're right on point in

          9  highlighting one of the problems we have, we face

         10  with the SLA. There is a newly-appointed

         11  commissioner from the City and a new, I guess

         12  Executive Director, who actually attended a

         13  community meeting in Lower Manhattan with myself,

         14  Speaker Quinn and her representative, and we asked

         15  that particular question as to whether or not they

         16  would automatically take action upon, and an

         17  adjudication of a City violation, and he avoided

         18  answering the question and actually said that he was

         19  interested in that but did not directly answer. So,

         20  I think you're correct in pursuing that, and I would

         21  support you in your efforts to call on them through

         22  resolution or our own action to get the SLA to

         23  respond as a matter of course to violations issued

         24  and adjudicated at the City level.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  that, and I'll absolutely be requesting that

          3  information from the SLA, and I'll do it jointly

          4  with you. We'll see what we get back.

          5                 And let me also just say that Mr.

          6  Gerson is not a member of the Public Safety

          7  Committee, does not have to be here but is here

          8  because this is an issue that he's been in the

          9  forefront in, and we appreciate his expertise in

         10  this area.

         11                 Councilman Gennaro, any questions

         12  before I dismiss? Okay. Commissioner, tomorrow

         13  morning same time, same place.

         14                 Let me thank all of you. This is a

         15  work-in-progress. We will be contacting you and

         16  taking your suggestions into consideration. We do

         17  want to get this done as soon as possible, so I

         18  anticipate by early fall we'll be standing together

         19  and giving even more of the tools they need to get

         20  the job done. So, thank you all for the work you've

         21  done on this, and that you do everyday. Look forward

         22  to working with you.

         23                 MR. FEINBLATT: Thank you.

         24                 COMMANDING OFFICER CONROY: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next panel
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          2  consists of Nightlife Association, Attorney Robert

          3  Bookman, David Rabin, the President of Nightlife

          4  Association, and E.C. Hunt.

          5                 I just want to give a few moments for

          6  the back of the room to clear out. So take a deep

          7  breath.

          8                 All right, I think we can get started

          9  again. Gentlemen, it's a pleasure to see you all

         10  again. I know we've worked closely on many other

         11  issues regarding nightlife, and it's always been a

         12  fruitful collaboration, as long as Mr. Bookman is

         13  representative of those places we just heard about

         14  that got hit this weekend, then everything is okay.

         15                 I guess you'll go first, Mr. Bookman?

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes. Just for the

         17  record, before I get started on my testimony,

         18  because it concerned me, you kept saying his

         19  statistics were startling. Although the number of

         20  unlicensed individuals was really not that

         21  startling, and I'll get into my testimony why I

         22  think so.

         23                 But you kept saying convictions, he

         24  kept saying arrest history. You then said

         25  convictions again, he said kept saying arrest
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          2  history. I don't think the distinction was

          3  accidental. I would be surprised, most of us in the

          4  free world deal with convictions, not arrest

          5  histories, I would be curious to find out what the

          6  conviction history of those individuals were.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But if they were

          8  unlicensed, it would never --

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Doesn't matter.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:-- It would never

         11  have come up whether they had the convictions or

         12  not.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: Could well have been

         14  convicted, but arrests wouldn't stop you from being

         15  licensed, convictions would.

         16                 On behalf of the members of New York

         17  Nightlife Association, thank you, Mr. Chair, for

         18  inviting us to testify today concerning Intro. 366.

         19  I also want to thank the Speaker for her remarks in

         20  support of the nightlife industry and Mr. Feinblatt

         21  as well, both whose testimony we substantially agree

         22  with.

         23                 New York City's late night bars,

         24  clubs and lounges are the safest in the world. From

         25  fire safety to crowd control to interior security,
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          2  we are second to none.

          3                 This international reputation for

          4  fun, combined with safety, counts for the 64 million

          5  annual admissions each year at our establishment. To

          6  put that number into context, that is more than all

          7  of New York City's sports teams, all of Broadway and

          8  the Metropolitan Museum combined.

          9                 Given those staggering numbers of

         10  patrons spread over about 1,200 establishments that,

         11  Council Member Gerson, we probably all agree are

         12  nightlife establishments.

         13                 There will be some incidents and bad

         14  operators. No question about it. Just as there are

         15  unfortunate criminal incidents at Yankee Stadium,

         16  Madison Square Garden, subways and our parks, and is

         17  there room for improvement in the security area in

         18  our industry? There always is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Bookman, let

         20  me just interrupt you one second, you say you're the

         21  safest, I don't doubt it for a minute, but has there

         22  been a study? What statistics are you using for

         23  that?

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, there was a study

         25  done after those unfortunate fire incidents, that
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          2  occurred both in Rhode Island, there was a fire in

          3  Rhode Island and there was the trampling incident in

          4  Chicago about two years ago that occurred around the

          5  same time, and there was a number of national media

          6  and studies then concerning our safety laws in our

          7  licensed premises concerning other cities and other

          8  countries, and at the time it was pretty much

          9  conceded, at least in those areas of public safety.

         10  We have the toughest laws and the best laws. I am

         11  arguing as well, that as far as criminal incidents

         12  go, that's just from a personal history of

         13  representing the industry over 20 years that the

         14  most criminal incidents at our establishments are

         15  when, in fact, the bouncers, as you call them, are

         16  generally the victims of crime, much more than

         17  perpetrators of crime, in the enforcement of these

         18  very difficult situations they regularly assaulted.

         19  You recall the incident of the bouncer in the Lower

         20  East Side that was murdered enforcing the smoking

         21  ban, you know, these are much more common. The fact

         22  that these three incidents received the attention

         23  that they did, and they are horrible incidents of

         24  specifically two crazy individuals, and the two of

         25  them committing crazy crimes, the reason why they
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          2  got the attention that they did is because it is so

          3  unusual. You know, if it was a daily occurrence, it

          4  wouldn't be such a big media event.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I don't

          6  disagree. I'm just for the record trying to figure

          7  out whether that's an opinion or a fact.

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: Probably more opinion. I

          9  tend to believe my opinions are facts.

         10                 NYNA is pleased to offer our

         11  expertise and cooperation in working together with

         12  the Council and the Administration in arriving at

         13  meaningful changes in the law that results in

         14  improving public safety.

         15                 Intro. 366 is a reasonable first

         16  step. But it is only a first step because ultimately

         17  the safety of our industry's 64 million patrons when

         18  on the public sidewalks is the responsibility of the

         19  NYPD, not private businesses. Clearly, it is our

         20  responsibility to keep our premises secure inside

         21  and at our doors. The streets is the police's

         22  problem.

         23                 And to that end, we call on this

         24  Council to once again fulfill the public promise of

         25  Speaker Miller and the majority of the current
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          2  members and pass the Paid Detail Unit legislation.

          3                 If the NYPD brass is unable or

          4  unwilling to police our streets late at night and

          5  areas rich with lawfully zoned and licensed

          6  nightlife businesses, then we're willing to pay for

          7  the uniformed cops, not to be our security, but to

          8  walk a bet on the street to keep the peace, and

          9  parenthetically to keep quality of life complaints

         10  to a minimum. No legislation on this issue can be

         11  complete without Paid Detail.

         12                 As to the specifics of Intro. 366, we

         13  have expressed general support for the Nuisance

         14  Abatement and the public assembly additions.

         15                 We do think while we have some

         16  problems, and that's a discussion for another day

         17  with the way the police are currently, we believe,

         18  abusing the Nuisance Abatement Law, especially only

         19  going to the judges on Fridays, you know, the judges

         20  do work on Monday, Tuesday and Wednesdays, more

         21  often than not creating a situation where they just

         22  contacted the premises in advance, they would get

         23  the same stipulations and the same changes in

         24  operation rather than closing them down for a busy

         25  weekend, nevertheless, we think adding violation of
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          2  the State law -- State Security Guard law as a

          3  nuisance is a good idea. And the public assembly

          4  additions we don't think are too broad. The Building

          5  Department again maybe is not the right reporting

          6  agency, but as one part of Commissioner Feinblatt's

          7  testimony I do disagree with, while there may be

          8  10,000 places of public assembly, only a small

          9  fraction of them use individuals that are required

         10  to be licensed by the State as security guards. And

         11  if you're licensed to be -- and if you're using

         12  somebody who is required to be licensed as a

         13  security guard by the State, I don't care if it's a

         14  bank or bar or a building, they should be licensed,

         15  and there should be some City mechanism to go after

         16  those places if they're violating the State law, and

         17  I think into the public assembly sections and the

         18  Nuisance Abatement Sections, you know, are good

         19  ideas. What's the difference whether they happen to

         20  serve liquor or not, if it's a security guard, you

         21  know, at a bank, that person is supposed to be

         22  licensed and they should be licensed, and there

         23  should be some sort of mechanism for going after

         24  them if they're not.

         25                 The creativity, as to the Cabaret
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          2  sections, however, we do have some reservations, and

          3  we do think it is a little overreaching and too

          4  broad in some areas, we would like to work with the

          5  Committee to resolve those objections.

          6                 The creativity of the security

          7  employee, expansion of the State law, we see what is

          8  trying to be accomplished here. But as Commissioner

          9  Feinblatt stated, it does need to meet the reality

         10  of the real world of operations of cabarets.

         11                 For example, owners will often be at

         12  the door 30 minutes or so on a busy night, but

         13  owners often are employees legally of the LLC or the

         14  corporation that is licensed. So, we mean to include

         15  an owner, you know, like Mr. Rabin, who maybe will

         16  go out the door in his tight black shirt to make

         17  sure that things are running well out there, I don't

         18  think we need to be doing security background checks

         19  on ourselves.

         20                 We also may have and often do have in

         21  addition to license security, you know, a young

         22  person checking over our VIP list or our guest list,

         23  you know, really a glorified hostess. I don't think

         24  we really mean spiritually to include those types of

         25  individuals.
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          2                 Our recommendation is as long as

          3  there is a licensed security person present at the

          4  door, then there is no need for the security

          5  employee section, as well. You know, perhaps one or

          6  the other but not both.

          7                 Moreover, again, as Commissioner

          8  Feinblatt stated, if we retain the services of a

          9  licensed security guard company, as most large clubs

         10  do, we think that should provide, and that company

         11  provides us with licensed security guards, we think

         12  we should be able to reasonably rely on this, and

         13  should not be in violation of our cabaret license,

         14  if on a particular Saturday night our licensed

         15  security guard company sent us ten individuals and

         16  it turns out that they mistakingly sent us nine

         17  licensed security guards and one unlicensed security

         18  guard, I don't think, I hope, that our intent here

         19  is not to suspend or revoke the license of a

         20  multi-million dollar establishment under those

         21  circumstances.

         22                 So, I think there should be some

         23  defense, or limitation of liability that we use a

         24  licensed security guard company, and, you know,

         25  frankly, the reason why many people use licensed
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          2  security guard companies is to get out of the record

          3  keeping and bookkeeping and checking requirement

          4  that the State Law requires, because the State has

          5  licensed these people to provide us with licensed

          6  security guards. Perhaps there needs to be some

          7  mechanism, you know, to go after the licensed

          8  security guard companies if they are violating the

          9  law.

         10                 Then, and I think it's important that

         11  you all understand this, there are problems with the

         12  Administration of the State Law itself, and making

         13  it a violation of City law for us to violate the

         14  State law is fine, if the State law is administered

         15  properly and is, can be complied with.

         16                 Let me relate some real world

         17  problems our members are having with complying with

         18  the State law, and I will be the first to admit that

         19  after the terrible Imette St. Guillen tragedy, we

         20  were the first ones to start scurrying around and

         21  reading about this State law, which apparently have

         22  been on the books for ten or 12 years that all of

         23  our large clubs knew about and generally were

         24  complying because they generally use licensed

         25  security guard companies.
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          2                 The problems we were finding out was

          3  in the little places, the neighborhood places, that

          4  maybe never had a security person prior to the

          5  smoking ban but they needed to put somebody at the

          6  door to stop people from walking out without alcohol

          7  so now they have somebody, or maybe they always had

          8  one person who kind of served in that function,

          9  checked IDs, and I think were universally unaware of

         10  the law, and the Falls was one of those places,

         11  whether they were unaware of it or not, I think

         12  universally small places were not using licensed

         13  security guard companies.

         14                 What we found, and Chuck Hunt will

         15  testify more to this, what we found in putting our

         16  own alerts out, in finding out how one complies with

         17  the law, and it wasn't a simple process to even find

         18  that out, but so that you understand, State security

         19  guard license law is enforced, is administered by

         20  the New York State Department of State, and step one

         21  is fairly simple. You go on their website, you can

         22  download an application form, the fee, send it off

         23  to them, they require the applicant be

         24  fingerprinted, and they send the fingerprints off to

         25  federal, state and local levels and then you pass or
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          2  fail step one.

          3                 Step two, though, is this class that

          4  you have to pass to take, this eight-hour course,

          5  and maybe it's not sufficient, you know, we could

          6  certainly discuss that as well.

          7                 The State Department of State doesn't

          8  administer the course, they refer you to Department

          9  of Criminal Justice Services' website. The

         10  Department of Criminal Justice's website gives you a

         11  list apparently of private companies that have

         12  become certified over the years to teach this class.

         13  And you, Rob Bookman, since I'm so buffed, could

         14  decide now you need to get the security guard

         15  license because I'm checking IDs, you know, in the

         16  local bar in Staten Island, up to me to find one of

         17  these private businesses to teach me the class. And

         18  what we found is that list is out of date, many of

         19  the companies on the list, the phone numbers there,

         20  you know, don't exist anymore, and those that do are

         21  generally large private security guard companies who

         22  got certified to teach their employees and

         23  perspective employees. They're not interested in

         24  teaching the general public.

         25                 We're having a tough time, together
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          2  with the State Restaurant Association, getting any

          3  of these certified companies to give us an offer, a

          4  proposal, to be the company that we recommend to

          5  teach the class through the State Restaurant

          6  Association, so there is difficulty there.

          7                 We strongly urge, strongly recommend,

          8  that here in the City, that we take the lead, and

          9  part of any of this legislation that requires you to

         10  -- you know, give extra penalties for violating the

         11  State law, who better to teach the class than NYPD.

         12  I'm sure they don't even need to get certified. I'm

         13  sure they're automatically certified. And especially

         14  if you want to add more to the course, there needs

         15  to be a government body that individuals can go to

         16  just like with the Health Department, the food

         17  handler certificate to individuals, the Health

         18  Department offers the class. Private companies,

         19  private agencies can get certified as well, but the

         20  Health Department has an academy, and you get

         21  certified. Motor vehicles, driver's license, they do

         22  it. There is no government body here that gives this

         23  class, and we think for the uniformity of the

         24  training and to the quality of the training and for

         25  ease in being trained, we should require that the
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          2  NYPD make the class available on a regular basis so

          3  that we can upgrade in the City of New York, the

          4  quality of who these individuals that we're going to

          5  call security guards are.

          6                 Let me just share a quick e-mail with

          7  you on the second issue of administration of this

          8  license by the State one of our members sent me to

          9  pass along with you: "My weekend security guy paid

         10  his license renewal fee many months ago and has yet

         11  to receive a new license in the mail. Despite this,

         12  since the expiration date on his license has passed,

         13  and despite his constant calls to the State

         14  Department of State, the 9th Precinct maintains that

         15  he is unlicensed security and that both he and I can

         16  be ticketed for this. Am I supposed to fire this guy

         17  because the State can't process his renewal in a

         18  timely fashion?"

         19                 And then we had another person who

         20  sent me an e-mail requesting that I ask that she

         21  doesn't have a security guard, it's a small place,

         22  60-person occupancy. There is nobody at the door,

         23  but the bartender is the one who is required to

         24  check IDs, to make sure they're not serving anyone

         25  under 21. Is it your intention that bartenders in a
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          2  place where there is no security have to be

          3  certified as a security guard? I mean, we hope not.

          4  But these are the types of questions that we, you

          5  know, have.

          6                 So, finally, again, to finish up, you

          7  know, we have no objection with tough penalties, you

          8  know, for businesses that ignore this law, but we

          9  want to make sure that it's a law that responsible

         10  businesses, you know, can comply with.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. HUNT: Good afternoon, Mr.

         13  Chairman, and honored members of the Committee. I'm

         14  Chuck Hunt. I'm Executive Vice President of the New

         15  York State Restaurant Association. It's a

         16  not-for-profit association representing over 7,000

         17  restaurants, bars, clubs, taverns and other food and

         18  beverage establishments in New York State.

         19                 Over 3,000 of these establishments

         20  are located within the five boroughs of New York

         21  City. This include members of our New York Nightlife

         22  Association Chapter, which is also, as you know,

         23  represented here today by Counsel Robert Bookman.

         24                 Our mission as an association

         25  representing the food service and hospitality
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          2  industry is to advocate, educate and promote our

          3  industry in New York State.

          4                 We are also affiliated with and share

          5  that responsibility with the National Restaurant

          6  Association. Incidentally, we're a little troubled

          7  by the wording of Intro 366, specifically in the

          8  phrase and the introduction, "enforcement against."

          9  We would have preferred the use of enforcement of

         10  regulations regarding security at cabarets, dance

         11  clubs and certain places of public assembly that use

         12  security personnel.

         13                 However, I assure you that all our

         14  members, not just those nightlife associations,

         15  place proper security in the safety of our customers

         16  as a priority of responsible business practices.

         17                 You've heard Mr. Bookman in regard to

         18  Intro. 366 and his outline for the needs of Paid

         19  Detail. We concur with his analysis and

         20  recommendations.

         21                 The New York State Restaurant

         22  Association is in the process of making the required

         23  classes of security guard training available for our

         24  members and others.

         25                 These classes will be added to our
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          2  schedule for food safety and responsible service of

          3  alcohol instructional seminars.

          4                 The security guard training will

          5  either be conducted in our classroom, in Midtown

          6  Manhattan, or at a facility provided by a third

          7  party, that was an authorized training company.

          8                 However, I do also want to echo Mr.

          9  Bookman's remarks about the difficulty of finding a

         10  licensed company or instructor to help us in this

         11  project.

         12                 We will also conduct a series of

         13  informational needs to make sure that our members

         14  are aware of the regulatory requirements regarding

         15  security guards, and the restrictional of hiring of

         16  individual and felony convictions by licensed

         17  premises serving alcoholic beverages.

         18                 Our goal as that of the nightlife

         19  chapter, is to cooperate and work with the Council

         20  and the City Administration to assure the safety of

         21  our customers and our fellow New Yorkers.

         22                 Just a little remark about the class

         23  that we give in the responsible service of alcohol,

         24  there are sections in this dealing with the

         25  liabilities and responsibilities under the law. We
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          2  teach them the path of alcohol and the effect of

          3  alcohol on the body, we teach them in responsible

          4  methods in checking IDs, and most important, the

          5  last section and probably the most important section

          6  of the class is handling difficult situations. And

          7  it occurs to me that security people, as well as

          8  other personnel within all licensed establishments

          9  would gain additional instruction and knowledge in

         10  this area.

         11                 So, I thank you for this opportunity

         12  to speak to you today, and we feel that this is an

         13  important matter and for the most part are strongly

         14  in agreement with your goal.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Mr. Chairman, if I may?

         16  There's two quick things I forgot to mention.

         17                 One was another comment that we

         18  received from a member, again, a small bar. To

         19  reiterate the point about why we need to make it

         20  simpler for individuals to work at those small bars

         21  to become trained and certified, is when they were

         22  calling these certified trainers for security guard

         23  companies, they found that they were not really

         24  interested in even placing, taking on the job of a

         25  place that needs one person maybe two or three
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          2  nights a week. They're interested in more

          3  substantial numbers. It doesn't pay for them to open

          4  an account for something like that.

          5                 So, we really, the majority of places

          6  that probably have unlicensed, I guess it's 90

          7  percent of the places that have unlicensed security

          8  guards are the little places that have one, and we

          9  need to make sure that there's a system where we can

         10  get that one person properly trained and certified.

         11                 And the last point was, there's a

         12  piece in the law here which states for the few

         13  hundred cabaret licensees out of the 10,000 liquor

         14  licensees in New York, that any violation of this

         15  provision shall result in a suspension or revocation

         16  of the license. I think the shall should be changed

         17  to may. I don't think a first-time incident in every

         18  circumstance should result in a closing of a

         19  multi-million dollar business, especially in the

         20  circumstances where there may have been a reasonable

         21  attempt to comply. The person may in fact be

         22  licensed, but that the paperwork wasn't there at the

         23  time.

         24                 You know, you might get a summons for

         25  not having the paperwork present, but that should
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          2  not tie the hands of the Administrative Law Judge

          3  and require suspension or revocation, even when the

          4  judge thinks it's not an appropriate penalty. And we

          5  start putting words like shall in, that makes it

          6  mandatory.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a very

          8  good point. We'll take that into consideration.

          9                 Mr. Rabin, do you have a statement,

         10  or you're just looking good in the black shirt.

         11                 MR. RABIN: I don't know if I'm jacked

         12  up enough.

         13                 Thank you for allowing us to speak. I

         14  don't want to reiterate too much what these guys

         15  said, I just want to give some real world stuff on

         16  this about operating our places and how it relates

         17  to the proposed law.

         18                 One thing I think is partially we're

         19  not asking the right questions here on the Committee

         20  today. There's been a lot of focus on the door, but

         21  a large establishment might have seven, eight, ten

         22  guys working inside and the initial questioning,

         23  there's a great deal of questions about who is at

         24  the door, who is at the door, who is at the door,

         25  that's certainly a concern. But I think you're also
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          2  concerned with who is working inside, more so than

          3  you are with whether or not there is a good looking

          4  girl at the front door with a guest list in her

          5  hand. I don't think you necessarily need her to be

          6  licensed. If you've got eight guys patrolling inside

          7  of a large venue, I think that's the person you care

          8  about being licensed, not an acting student carrying

          9  a clipboard at the front door.

         10                 With regards to what Rob just said,

         11  in terms of revocation of a cabaret license, you

         12  know, and the wording "shall" upon one incident,

         13  there's already a million reasons why people don't

         14  want to apply for cabaret licenses and would rather

         15  try and skirt the cabaret law, and here is another

         16  one. If I was afraid to lose my cabaret license

         17  because I had an unlicensed security guard, then I'd

         18  be more likely to just try and run a dance club

         19  without having a cabaret license, rather than run

         20  the risk of losing my entire business over one

         21  incident. I think you need to find more ways for

         22  people to follow the law, not to try to skirt the

         23  law.

         24                 Overall, I guess the whole purpose of

         25  this law and the reason we're all here today is we
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          2  want to keep the public safer, and I think part of

          3  the problem with that issue is that our businesses

          4  have varying relationships with the police,

          5  depending on which precinct we're in and who is in

          6  control of that precinct at the time.

          7                 Many of us, and I think there are not

          8  a lot of owners here today, but many owners will

          9  tell you that they are very fearful at times of

         10  calling the police to ask for assistance with

         11  incidents that may occur outside their premises

         12  because they fear getting a disorderly premise

         13  ticket, even if the person has never been a patron

         14  in their venue. And I think that one thing that

         15  needs to be part of this discussion is changing the

         16  relationship between nightlife and police precincts,

         17  so that nightlife venues don't fear calling the

         18  police.

         19                 You know, very often there's people

         20  who have never been admitted to our venues, who are

         21  causing a problem in the street. And we can't call

         22  the cops because we fear getting a ticket for

         23  disorderly premise for people that were never our

         24  customers.

         25                 I highly doubt that James Dolan or
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          2  George Steinbrenner are getting disorderly premise

          3  tickets every time there's a fight in the stands at

          4  a baseball game or a hockey game, but if there's an

          5  incident in our place and we ask for police

          6  assistance, very likely the cop will say I hate to

          7  do this, you did the right thing, you called us, but

          8  I have to give you a summons for something for

          9  coming down here. So, it's a huge disincentive to

         10  safety right now.

         11                 And the last issue which we're

         12  beating to death, but I do think that the Paid

         13  Detail Unit, while not a panacea, is certainly a

         14  step in the right direction.

         15                 I don't buy the Police Department's

         16  argument that they can't work where there is a

         17  licensed premise, because they do work at Yankee

         18  Stadium, Madison Square Garden, they all have liquor

         19  licenses at those venues and Paid Detail works

         20  there. And also, the NYPD proposal for 12 cops and

         21  two sergeants for six hours makes absolutely no

         22  sense. There's no way that three bars can afford 14

         23  cops, nor do they need 14 cops to patrol the area of

         24  three cars. I believe that the Police Department

         25  deliberately structured their proposal in a way that
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          2  made it an economical impossibility for us to hire

          3  them, and I don't see why, for example, on 14th

          4  Street if Lotus was willing to pay for two cops to

          5  walk back and forth on 14th Street all night long

          6  how that isn't a vast improvement in the current

          7  situation. We're very happy to pay for that, and we

          8  get rebuffed at every term. It's very frustrating.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         11                 As you know, Mr. Rabin, I don't

         12  disagree with you when it comes to Paid Detail. It's

         13  one of the few areas that I do have a difference of

         14  opinion with the Commissioner, but we've done, as

         15  have you, some intensive legal research into this

         16  and there doesn't appear to be any way to take that

         17  discretion away from the Police Commissioner. So,

         18  what we'll do is continue to try to persuade them

         19  that your point of view is the correct one.

         20                 We've been joined by Council Member

         21  Monserrate and he also has some questions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair. And good afternoon, gentlemen. Happy to

         24  see you back at the Chambers. Obviously the bill is

         25  extremely timely in light of some of the tragic
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          2  events that have occurred at licensed premises.

          3                 I will also concur with our chair

          4  that the Department should consider their current

          5  position with regard to Paid Details. I think that

          6  Paid Details would go a long way towards preventing

          7  many of the incidents that at times occur,

          8  particularly in the wee morning hours.

          9                 I also remember that many, many years

         10  ago, when I was a young Marine in North Carolina,

         11  that police officers were not really outside, but

         12  actually inside working to make sure that Marines

         13  were behaving themselves inside. So, I personally

         14  know, and I've seen it in other states, and it seems

         15  to have been very effective.

         16                 So, I would hope that the Department

         17  would reconsider that. I think that it would go a

         18  long way towards prevention. And as the Department

         19  trains its rookie police officers in the Academy,

         20  something I know about also, one of the big things

         21  is omnipresence, and the mere presence of police

         22  officers on the streets has an impact that deters

         23  unlawful behavior. And I think that this is what

         24  they teach in the police academy and I'm sure the

         25  Police Department would not ever attempt to disagree
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          2  with that position.

          3                 But I have some questions

          4  specifically regarding what appears to me to be a

          5  pattern of concurrence between your position and the

          6  position of Mr. Feinblatt, the Administration's New

          7  York City Criminal Justice Coordinator, and that is

          8  the whole issue of licensing greeters, or

          9  individuals who might not necessarily have to do

         10  anything with security or maintaining order.

         11                 Just to be clear, it's your position

         12  that you believe that the bill is currently drafted

         13  overextends into greeters and others who are not

         14  really part of security personnel; is that correct?

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: That's correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Can you

         17  extend upon that? Besides the greeters, who else do

         18  you believe would be impacted by the current

         19  language in this bill?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, Section 8 of the

         21  bill, Security Employee. Let's first all be clear

         22  that we all understand each other. The way I read

         23  this, this is only going to impact on the licensed

         24  cabarets, which are about 300 or so places in the

         25  City of New York. So, we're talking about a small
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          2  fraction of the number of liquor license

          3  establishments and only a third or a less of even of

          4  the nightlife establishments, so in that subgroup,

          5  so certainly not a panacea for any Citywide issue.

          6                 So, I guess philosophically I do have

          7  something of a problem requiring a whole different

          8  definition of who security is just for 300 places in

          9  the State of New York, so that's first of all. When

         10  you look at the current wording of security

         11  employee, it says anybody who monitors the entrance,

         12  you know, like or exit.

         13                 Well, clearly any greeters, anybody

         14  who is checking a VIP list, you know, they're

         15  monitoring the entrance. I don't think that's who --

         16  those certainly haven't been the types of people

         17  that have been involved in any of the recent

         18  incidents, I don't think they're ever likely to be

         19  the types of people involved in any incidents.

         20                 Commissioner Feinblatt (sic) said

         21  also as a Subdivision II, protection of public from

         22  disorderly conduct by such patrons, I agree with him

         23  that there can come a time in a small bar where the

         24  dish washer might be called out to help break up an

         25  incident, and, therefore, under this broad net of
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          2  this definition, might be somebody we need to

          3  fingerprint, you know, anybody who is in the back

          4  room, everybody who cleans up, if they're asked to,

          5  every bartender can theoretically at some point be

          6  involved in a situation where they're, you know,

          7  involved with disorderly patron. But that's not

          8  their job. You know, their job is to serve drinks,

          9  their job is to clean up, is, you know, to bus

         10  tables. You know, we have, frankly, individuals, I'm

         11  going to say this carefully, it would seem to me

         12  that there are many individuals employed in some of

         13  those jobs in our establishments, that for

         14  immigration or other status, you know, would

         15  certainly feel very uncomfortable being

         16  fingerprinted, even though they're not involved in

         17  any security function, and they probably should not

         18  require to be fingerprinted. I don't think we

         19  necessarily want to go down that road where anybody

         20  that works in a place that has a liquor license

         21  because they might eventually, or a cabaret, in this

         22  case, might eventually help break up a fight, you

         23  know, needs to be a security employee, and if the

         24  definition is not clear, we're going to err on the

         25  side of, you know, of safety, so that some police
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          2  officers can come and give us a ticket and now we

          3  have a hearing that may result, or shall result in

          4  the revocation of our license.

          5                 So, I think those are two particular

          6  areas we agree with the Administration, the

          7  definition of security employee is a little too

          8  broad. We would go one step further and say I don't

          9  know if it's necessary.

         10                 I think we can all agree on what the

         11  definition under the State law is, who is covered

         12  and who is not covered, and then let's just give

         13  tough provisions for making sure people who don't

         14  comply with that State law are punished here in New

         15  York.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right. Mr.

         17  Chair, I don't have any other questions, just a

         18  comment that I'm very happy that the Nightlife

         19  Association has taken this position and is looking

         20  to work cooperatively with this Council in

         21  responding to an issue that needs response.

         22                 And I know at the end of the day

         23  we'll have a bill that is fair to all involved. And

         24  the reality is that many of the establishments that

         25  you represent run what I would term good shops, and
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          2  unfortunately, there are some bad shops out there

          3  who give a bad name to the majority of the

          4  industries.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: I agree. I also think we

          7  need to address, and I think we started to today,

          8  you know, comprehensively the level of who these

          9  people are that we call security guards or bouncers,

         10  you know? And the training and the licensing, you

         11  know, that's required.

         12                 Two of the three incidents that

         13  you've mentioned, you know, in your opening remarks,

         14  were licensed security guards from licensed security

         15  guard companies, and, you know, there you have it,

         16  they were licensed security guard companies.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We need to move.

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We have only a

         20  few moments left, so I want to get to one set of

         21  questions, I believe.

         22                 Before I do, Mr. Bookman, I was

         23  informed that the City Investigative (phonetic)

         24  conducts classes on security guards and will either

         25  come to the place of business or will train
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          2  personnel at the location, located at 42nd Street

          3  and Broadway, they have classes six days a week, and

          4  they start at 10:00 a.m., and the contact person for

          5  you is Martin Burke, okay?

          6                 Councilman Gennaro.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman.

          9                 I just want to echo some of the

         10  comments of Council Member Monserrate with regard to

         11  the Nightlife Association, the Restaurant

         12  Association, trying to work very cooperatively with

         13  us to achieve an ultimate outcome that maximizes

         14  safety but doesn't create an undue burden in the

         15  place of establishments, unnecessary risk of

         16  closure. And I'm thankful, Mr. Chairman, that this

         17  bill is being heard in your Committee. Of course it

         18  would be heard in your Committee, but my point is

         19  that I know that you want to work very cooperatively

         20  with all folks like these gentlemen who have come

         21  forward today to reach a satisfactory outcome.

         22                 You know, sometimes when this Council

         23  brings a bill before the Administration, all we hear

         24  from the Administration is they don't want to do it,

         25  they can't do it, the sky is falling, we can never
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          2  get this done. But here we have a situation, we have

          3  people in the industry who want to come forward and

          4  work cooperatively with us, if only we get the same

          5  cooperation from the Bloomberg Administration all

          6  the time, we could perhaps get more things done.

          7                 I'm happy to hear that there appears

          8  to be some new information which you just announced,

          9  Mr. Chairman, regarding the classes. Hopefully

         10  that's something that will be positive. I look

         11  forward to hearing from Mr. Bookman about whether or

         12  not the classes that are offered by the City are

         13  adequate or whether or not they produce the desired

         14  outcome. But I'm very, very sympathetic to their

         15  points regarding their definition of security

         16  employee.

         17                 I guess my point is that when we do

         18  this, we want to do it once, we want to do it right,

         19  we want to speak to the tragedies that have happened

         20  in our City and I know that under your guidance, Mr.

         21  Chairman, in working with these fine people from the

         22  Nightlife Restaurant industries that we'll get a

         23  positive outcome and I look forward to changes to

         24  the bill that would lead me to be a co-sponsor of

         25  it, and in the interest of time, Mr. Chairman, I
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          2  know you want to move the hearing along, and I just

          3  wanted to put that statement on the record, and

          4  thank you for your leadership and thank these people

          5  in the industry who want to work cooperatively with

          6  us to get us the outcome that we all desire.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          9  Council member.

         10                 I'm going to have one more set of

         11  questions which are hopefully brief, and no more

         12  people will be testifying. I do need to leave very

         13  soon.

         14                 So, Council Member Gerson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, it's

         16  good to see all of you again. Just to follow-up to

         17  get at the goal of having the best possible bill,

         18  which of course we all share.

         19                 First of all, Mr. Bookman, did I

         20  understand you correctly to say that you agree that

         21  we need -- that you agree with the Police

         22  Department's testimony that training should be more

         23  than what is currently required, more than the

         24  current eight-hour course?

         25                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think that makes
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          2  sense, especially if it's being offered by the

          3  police.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And I agree

          5  with your point on that. I'm glad that our Chair was

          6  able to provide the clarification.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes, was that the Police

          8  Department? I didn't quite hear what he had to say.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You've got to

         10  ask the Chair that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The note I was

         12  handed said City Investigator.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think it's one of

         14  those private agencies on the list. Part of our

         15  problem is we can't vouch for the quality of some of

         16  these private companies, so I'd like to see the

         17  police do it, and then they could beef up what they

         18  teach.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, well,

         20  I'm just getting to this issue of the definition of

         21  the employee covered by the bill. You know, would

         22  you agree that in establishments covered by the bill

         23  there ought to be at least one licensed security

         24  guard under state law present during the hours of

         25  operation.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: Just the cabaret

          3  section?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, not just

          5  the cabaret, and I think I agree with you, I don't

          6  see any reason why, I mean if we remove the

          7  kindergarten type of situations, I don't see any

          8  reasons why the cabaret and the non-cabaret

          9  nightlife establishments should be treated

         10  differently and I think we'll follow up and look

         11  into this. There may be technical reasons, as you

         12  know, the law currently does have special sections

         13  related to cabarets, and something many of us think

         14  should be changed. That's for the course, that's for

         15  a future hearing.

         16                 But the technicalities aside, in

         17  general, I mean you're point was that if you have a

         18  greeter, or a person, a host or a hostess checking

         19  VIP list, that's not who we're talking about. And I

         20  agree with you. The concern is, you know, we don't

         21  want to open up a loophole where persons, you know,

         22  redefine themselves to avoid coverage by the law, or

         23  clubs. So, my question to you is, can we avoid

         24  creating the loophole and at the same time meet your

         25  concern by saying, well, if you have more than one
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          2  person at the door doing different things, we know

          3  that there needs to be at least one such person

          4  covered by, you know, who is licensed, and we also

          5  don't want to encourage establishments, even if it's

          6  just one or two who are responsible, but we don't

          7  want to encourage any as a result of the law to

          8  remove people from the door so they have no one at

          9  the door.

         10                 So, I'm asking you for establishments

         11  that meet a threshold in terms of their size and

         12  hours of operation, can we avoid the problem by

         13  saying, well, there has to be at least one employee

         14  who is licensed under the law; does that make sense?

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think, especially with

         16  your last caveat, you know, establishments that meet

         17  a threshold of capacity and stuff, yes, I think that

         18  would make sense. I would think it makes sense for

         19  every 60-person or 70-person bar, who never had a

         20  person at the door, doesn't have a person at the

         21  door, you know, but I think probably fit larger size

         22  places. I think it's something that we would not

         23  have a serious problem with and require at least one

         24  person to have this license.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. Then
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          2  again, that's something, Mr. Chair, as we go about

          3  the drafting of the final bill we should follow-up

          4  on and, you know, without prejudices as to what the

          5  number for the threshold should be, that it's

          6  something which requires, you know, for the thought.

          7  And, well, I thank you, and I'm sure we'll be seeing

          8  plenty of each other as we go forward with this and

          9  other issues.

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Gerson.

         13                 Again, I appreciate the advice all

         14  three of you have given today. We will absolutely

         15  take it into consideration, and most likely make at

         16  least some of the changes you can come up with. I

         17  believe the point person right now would be Rob

         18  Colandera (phonetic) on this, for you to contact,

         19  we're in the midst of some changes here on staffing,

         20  but for you to contact regarding the progress of

         21  this bill.

         22                 I am done and I know you wanted to

         23  say something else.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes. Thank yous, you

         25  know, when everybody testifies, and I do it all the
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          2  time, we always are so perfunctory, thank you for

          3  allowing us to testify, thank you for being here,

          4  but I really want to thank you, and I want to thank

          5  the other Council members, and I want to thank the

          6  institution.

          7                 New York City Council, as I've been

          8  involved recently in some State legislative issues,

          9  I mean New York City Council is a model of

         10  democracy, and you really do reach out, you really

         11  do hold public hearings, you really do listen to

         12  what people have to say, you really do respond to

         13  it. We don't always get our way, which is fine, you

         14  know, then they wouldn't need me, but, you know,

         15  these thank yous are often taken for granted, and I

         16  think, you know, when you operate here, and this is

         17  your whole life, you take it for granted, it is a

         18  wonderful example, this Council, of how legislation

         19  is passed in New York, compared to other legislative

         20  bodies, and you don't have to travel that far north

         21  to make the comparison. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLLONE: Very

         23  nonperfunctory, thank you to you also. And as I

         24  informed our Sergeant-At-Arms today, I was not going

         25  to be hearing from anyone who did not get a card up
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          2  here before 1:30 because of my person schedule, so

          3  this hearing is now closed.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:35 p.m.)
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